50TH ANNIVERSARY


QUESTIONS


CONCERNING THE HISTORY OF AETC





1.  Two of San Antonio’s four Air Force bases conducted pilot training during World War I.  Which two?





	a.  Brooks and Kelly


	b.  Kelly and Randolph


	c.	  Brooks and Lackland





Kelly Field and Brooks Field. Planes first landed at Kelly in April 1917, and Brooks opened in February 1918. Randolph began training pilots in November 1931. Lackland opened in June 1942 as the San Antonio Aviation Cadet Center.





2.  After receiving instructions to move from the Washington,D.C. area to San Antonio and to “take plenty of spare parts and teach yourself to fly,” Lieutenant Benjamin D. Foulois made his first flight at what San Antonio military installation?





	a.	  Kelly Field


	b.  Fort Sam Houston


	c.  Brooks Field





At Fort Sam Houston on 2 March 1910. Foulois, coached through regular correspondence with the Wright brothers, later claimed “I was the first, and only pilot to learn to fly by mail.” In November 1916, Foulois, then a major, returned to San Antonio, fresh from an expedition with the 1st Aero Squadron in Mexico against Pancho Villa. His mission--to select a site for a brand new airfield. That airfield became Kelly Field.





3.  Who was the first FAIP (first assignment instructor pilot)?





	a.  Wilbur Wright


	b.  Frank P. Lahm


	c.  Frederic E. Humphreys





Probably Lieutenant Frederic E. Humphreys of the Army Corps of Engineers. He and Lieutenant Frank P. Lahm were the first two officers to be trained as pilots by the Wrights. Both soloed on 26 October 1909. Lieutenant Foulois went on his first flight with Wilbur Wright in late October. In all, Wilbur took him up on three instructional flights and then turned instructor pilot duties over to Lieutenant Humphreys.





4.  Which Air Force Chiefs of Staff earned their wings at Kelly Field?





	a.  Carl Spaatz


	b.  Hoyt Vandenberg


	c.  Curtis LeMay


	d.  George Brown





All but General Spaatz, the first Chief of Staff of the Air Force. Spaatz learned to fly in San Diego.





5.  To become a flying cadet in the 1930s, an applicant had to meet which qualifications?





	a. Be unmarried, in excellent health, and sound physical condition


	b. Be a male, US citizen between the agesf 20-27


	c. Have at least two years of college or be able to pass a comprehensive test


	d. All the above





All of the above. An applicant without two years of college could become a flying cadet if he could pass a test examining his knowledge of United States history, general history, English grammer and composition, geography, mathematics, and physics.





6.  The first women graduated from undergraduate pilot training (UPT) and earned their wings as Air Force pilots in:





	a.  September 1942


	b.  August 1943


	c.  September 1977


	d.  October 1977





Ten women became Air Force pilots in September 1977 when they graduated from UPT at Williams AFB, Arizona. A month later the Air Force graduated its first female navigators at Mather AFB, California. Thirty-five years earlier, in September 1942, Maj Gen Hap Arnold, Chief of the Air Corps, approved formation of the Women’s Auxiliary Ferrying Squadron, led by Nancy Harknes Love. The following month, General Arnold inaugurated the Women’s Flying Training Detachment, under the leadership of Jackie Cochran, to produce 500 women ferry pilots. In August 1943, the two organizations combined to form the Women’s Airforce Service Pilots or WASP.





7.  The United States Air Force has hosted the Euro-NATO Joint Jet Pilot Training (ENJJPT) program at Sheppard AFB, Texas, since:





	a.  August 1966


	b.  January 1972


	c.  July 1978


	d.  October 1981





The first ENJJPT class entered training at Sheppard in October 1981. Initially, only 12 NATO nations participated--Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Germany, Greece, Italy, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Turkey, the United Kingdom, and the United States. Iceland and Luxembourg had no air forces, and France opted not to participate. Spain affiliated itself with ENJJPT in 1986. The program was patterned after a pilot training program that the USAF had conducted for the German Air Force since August 1966.





8.  Air Force education and training programs were combined under the aegis of a single MAJCOM in:





	a.  1947


	b.  1961


	c.  1978


	d.  1993





It happened twice--first in May 1978 when Air University lost its status as a MAJCOM and was assigned to Air Training Command. That arrangement lasted until July 1983 when HQ USAF once again conferred MAJCOM status on Air University. Ten years later, in July 1993, HQ USAF redesignated Air Training Command as Air Education and Training Command with Air University as a principal subordinate component.





9.  On 12 February 1973, the Air Force implemented Project Homecoming--the repatriation of Americans freed from Vietnamese prison camps. Air Force officials designated 10 bases in the continental United States as welcoming points. Three of those were ATC bases. Which three?





	a.  Lackland, Keesler, and Sheppard


	b.  Lackland, Scott, and Chanute


	c.  Lackland, Keesler, and Maxwell





The three ATC bases that served as welcoming points for the POWs were Lackland, Keesler, and Sheppard. All three had some of the finest medical facilities in the Air Force.





10.  The entry of Class 93-12 into preflight training on 20 July 1992 marked the Air Force’s return to specialized undergraduate pilot training (SUPT). When had the Air Force previously relied on specialized training to produce pilots?





	a.  World War II


	b.  World War II and the Korean War


	c.  Vietnam War





Specialized training had served the Air Force well during World War II and the Korean War. However, ATC’s bid to acquire a conventional multi-engine aircraft to replace the B-25 was shot down when the Department of Defense deleted funds for that purpose from the FY 54 budget because of the high cost. With that, ATC searched for alternatives and by May 1956 had decided to phase out the B-25 and rely exclusively on the T-33 in the basic phase of pilot training. Specialized training was ushered out when the last class of multi-engine students completed training in the B-25 in January 1959.





11.  Where did the Air Service establish its first two technical training schools.





	a.  Chanute Field, Illinois, and Langley Field, Virginia


	b.  Lowry Field, Colorado, and Kelly Field, Texas


	c.  Chanute Field and St Paul, Minnesota


	d.  Kelly Field and St Paul, Minnesota





The Army’s air arm first used civilian trade schools and state universities to provide technical training. That was expensive, and training was often unsatisfactory because the schools did not have the proper equipment and competent instructors. So, the Air Service began using more on-the-job training, but still they were unsatisfied. In 1918 the Air Service put its first two technical training schools in operation--one at Kelly Field, Texas, and the other in St Paul, Minnesota. Both trained aviation mechanics.





12.  How many families of technical training did the Air Service have in 1922?





	a.  Ten


	b.  Three


	c.  One


	d.  Nineteen





In 1922 the Air Service consolidated all of its technical training--a total of three programs, communications, aviation mechanics, and aerial photography--at a single location, Chanute Field, Illinois.





13.  In what year did technical training production reach its highest point?





	a.  1944


	b.  1952


	c.  1969





Technical training production peaked in 1944 when Army Air Forces Training Command graduated over 900,000 students, not including field training. ATC reached its second largest production peak in 1952 when the schoolhouses graduated over 387,000 students, and the high point in the Vietnam War was 1969 when over 311,000 students completed training.





14.  During World War II, the Army Air Corps housed what school in these temporary facilities in Miami, Florida?





	a.  Radar School


	b.  Officer Training School


	c.  Weather Service School





During the war, the Army Air Corps used everything from luxury hotels to parking lots as training sites. In Miami Beach, the Officer Training Center set up its headquarters in a modern hotel, but the Officer Training School conducted its classes in these buildings that looked more like chicken coops than classrooms. The school closed in mid-June 1943.





15.  Which of the following was not an ATC base in 1959?





	a.  Chanute


	b.  Goodfellow


	c.  Amarillo


	d.  Scott





On 1 October 1958, HQ USAF transferred Goodfellow AFB from ATC to the USAF Security Service. Instead of continuing its flying training mission, Goodfellow began operating a cryptology school. Twenty years later, ATC picked up responsibility for cryptology training, and at the same time, reacquired Goodfellow.





16.  In the early 1950s, the student load was so great that a huge tent city had to be erected. Where was this tent city?





	a.  Keesler AFB, Mississippi


	b.  Sheppard AFB, Texas


	c.  Lackland AFB, Texas





During the Korean War, the number of new recruits so overloaded facilities at Lackland that a tent city had to be erected, but that was not enough to handle the overflow. In response, ATC soon established basic training programs at three more sites:  Sheppard AFB, Texas; Parks AFB, California; and Sampson AFB, New York.





17.  Of the numbered wings in AETC, which one has the oldest approved emblem?





	a.  17 TRW


	b.  59 MDW


	c.  80 FTW


	d.  81 TRW





(Include color copy of 17 TRW emblem)  The 17 TRW has the oldest emblem. It dates back to 2 Nov 37, when the War Department approved it as an aircraft insignia for the 17th Attack Group. Another eight wing emblems also began duty as aircraft insignia:  the 37 TRW, 42 ABW, 56 FW, 58 SOW, 80 FTW, 81 TRW, 97 AMW, and 59 MDW. All of these emblems were approved in World War II for combat groups holding the same numerical designation.





18.  What were the first two PME schools opened by Air University?





	a.  Air War College and the Air Tactical School


	b.  Air War College and Air Command and Staff School


	c.  Squadron Officers School and Air War College





The first two PME schools, Air War College and the Air Command and Staff School, began classes at Maxwell in the fall of 1946. The next year a third PME school opened at Tyndall, the Air Tactical School. The Air Command and Staff School later became ACSC, and the Air Tactical School became the Squadron Officer School.





19.  Before AETC began conducting survival training at Fairchild, where was this school located?





	a.  Camp Carson, Colorado


	b.  Lowry AFB, Colorado


	c.  Sheppard AFB, Texas


	d.  Stead AFB, Nevada





From 1954-1966, ATC conducted survival training at Stead AFB, Nevada. Originally, SAC had begun a survival training program for its downed aircraft crews. SAC conducted its training at Camp Carson from 1950-1952 and then moved the schoolhouse to Stead AFB. In 1954 both the training program and the base transferred to ATC.





20.  The Ruggles Orientator was used in





	a.  pilot training


	b.  the School of Aviation Medicine


	c.  survival training





Beginning in the early 1930s, the School of Aviation Medicine used the Ruggles Orientator in preflight testing to give students the feel of instrument flying. A hood could be placed over the cockpit to simulate flying at night or under nonvisual conditions.





21.  When and where did the last Officer Candidate School (OCS) class graduate?





	a.  Miami Beach, Florida; 21 February 1942


	b.  Maxwell Field, Alabama, January 1946


	c  Lackland AFB, Texas, 21 June 1963





The final class, Class 64D, graduated on 21 June 1963 at Lackland AFB, Texas. At the direction of General Henry H. (Hap) Arnold, Chief of the Army Air Forces, the War Department established the Officer Candidate School on 21 February 1942 at Miami Beach, Florida. The school later moved to San Antonio, then to Maxwell, and, finally, in February 1946, back to San Antonio. During its two decades of operation, the Officer Candidate School produced an estimated 42,500 graduates.





22.  When did the first Officer Training School class begin?





	a.  1936


	b.  1942


	c.  1951





To meet all of the Army air arm’s needs, it commissioned some individuals with special qualifications directly from civilian life. These people required some military training, so Technical Training Command set up an Officer Training School (OTS) at Miami Beach to provide six weeks of military instruction. It became an integral, but separate part of Officer Candidate School in June 1942.





23.  When and where did Air Training Command establish its first USAF Recruiting School and when did the first class enter training?





	a.  Fort Benjamin Harrison, Indiana


	b.  Randolph AFB, Texas


	c.  Lackland AFB, Texas





Until 12 May 1954, Air Force recruiters had been sent to the Army’s recruiting school at Fort Benjamin Harrison, Indiana. Training was conducted by Army instructors, and the course was patterned to meet the needs of the Army. Once the Department of Defense authorized the Air Force to train its own recruiters, Air Training Command selected Lackland AFB, Texas, for the course, and the first class entered training on 12 May 1954.





24.  When did the last aviation cadet graduate?





	a.  1948


	b.  1961


	c.  1965





The term aviation cadet was often used to refer to pilot candidates only; however, it really applied to training to become a rated officer. The last class entering pilot aviation cadets was 61G which graduated on 23 June 1961. Cadet William F. Wesson, a member of this class, broke his leg and could not graduate with his class. He became the last pilot aviation cadet to graduate when he completed Class 62B on 25 October 61 at Webb AFB, Texas. The last navigator aviation cadet class graduated on 3 March 1965 at James Connally AFB, Texas.





25.  Where is Yount Hall, the building named for the command’s first commanding general?





	a.  Barksdale AFB, Louisiana


	b.  Randolph AFB, Texas


	c.  Scott AFB, Illinois





Yount Hall is Building P-3 on Scott AFB, Illinois, the third home of the command’s headquarters. Completed in March 1940, Scott AFB Building P-3 was originally designed to be Headquarters, General Headquarters Air Force (GHQ Air Force). On 7 July 1951, ATC (at the time, headquartered at Scott) renamed the building Yount Hall in honor of Lt Gen Barton K. Yount, the first Commanding General of Army Air Forces Training Command. Army Air Forces Training Command was the original designation of AETC.





26.  Besides Lackland AFB, Texas, where has United States Air Force basic training been conducted?





	a.  Sampson AFB, New York.


	b.  Parks AFB, California.


	c.  Amarillo AFB, Texas.


	d.  All of the above





All of the bases mentioned have been used for Air Force basic training. HQ USAF activated Sampson on 15 November 1950. It received its first trainees in February 1951 and conducted basic training until 1 July 1956. Parks conducted basic training from 7 September 1954 to 21 November 1956. Largely because of a meningitis outbreak at Lackland, in February 1966 the command diverted incoming recruits to Amarillo, a base scheduled to close in July 1968. Lackland sent a sizable cadre of permanent party personnel to Amarillo to assist. It was not until the latter part of March that Lackland was back to normal. However, due to the influx of trainees for the Vietnam buildup, Amarillo continued basic military training until November 1968, and a month later, on 31 December 1968, the base closed.





27.  From its establishment in 1942 to the present, HQ Air Education and Training Command has been situated at four locations. What were they?





	a.  Randolph, Scott, Barksdale, and the Texas and Pacific Railway Building in Fort Worth, Texas


	b.  Randolph; Gravely Point, Virginia; Langley; and Brooks


	c.  Randolph, Kelly, Brooks, and Duncan Field.





From 1942 to 1947, Army Air Forces Training Command was headquartered in Fort Worth, Texas, where it occupied the top six floors of the Texas and Pacific Railway Building. In February 1947, Training Command moved its headquarters from downtown Fort Worth to Barksdale Field in northwestern Louisiana. Air Training Command moved its headquarters to Scott AFB on 17 October 1949. Between July and October 1957, ATC transferred its headquarters to Randolph. The new headquarters was located in Building 900, which originally served as the aviation cadet administration building.





28.  When did the command first establish a position that functioned much like today’s Senior Enlisted Advisor?





	a.  1942


	b.  1947


	c.  1970


	d.  1981





On 1 October 1970, ATC designated the Executive Assistant to the Chief of Staff as the Senior Airman Advisor. In April 1971, the commander aligned the position to report directly to him and sometime between March and July 1976 changed the name to Senior Enlisted Advisor.





29.  While most people know that Army Air Forces Training Command used Avenger Field, Sweetwater, Texas, as the primary base to train Women Airforce Service Pilots (WASPs), what was the first location used?





	a.  Howard Hughes Airport, Houston, Texas


	b.  San Angelo Field, Texas


	c.  Cochran Field, Georgia





In October 1942, 40 women were sent for training at Howard Hughes Airport in Houston, Texas. Officially, the unit was called the Women’s Flying Training Detachment (WFTD), but among the women it was known as the “Woofteddies.” When the facilities at Houston proved too limited, a new school was opened in February 1943 at Avenger Field, Sweetwater, Texas, and training at Houston soon phased out.





30.  What is the date that a military agency was given the authority to grant degrees to members of the enlisted force?





	a.  1968


	b.  1973


	c.  1976





President Gerald R. Ford approved legislation on 14 July 1976 authorizing the Community College of the Air Force to grant associate degrees for college-level academic study. Effective 12 January 1977, the US Commissioner of Education authorized the ATC commander to grant the Associate of Applied Science Degree to graduates of the Community College of the Air Force.





31.  Which of the following AETC commanders was a member of the Thunderbirds aerial demonstration team?





	a.  Gen Billy Boles


	b.  Gen Lloyd Newton


	c.	  Gen Henry Viccellio, Jr.





General Newton, the AETC commander from March 1997 to June 2000, flew with the Thunderbirds from 1974 to 1978.





32.  In 1947 the base pay of a newly commissioned second lieutenant was





	a.  About $50 per month


	b.  A little less than $200 per month


	c.  Almost $500 per month





In addition to $180 per month base pay, newly commissioned second lieutenants earned $21 BAS if they did not have dependents and $42 if they did. They were also eligible for $60 per month BAQ with dependents/$45 without. At the top of the pay scale, the Chief of Staff of the Air Force earned $733.33 in base pay, received the same BAS as the lieutenant, and was eligible for $120 BAQ with dependents or $105 without.





33.  In 1947 the base pay of a chief master sergeant was





	a.  About $50 per month


	b.  A little less than $200 per month


	c.  No E-9 rank existed in the USAF at that time





No E�9 rank existed in 1947. It was not until the late 1950s when, in an effort to help create promotion opportunities for its enlisted corps, the Air Force established the E-8 and E-9 “supergrades.” E�8 went into effect in 1958 and E�9 in 1959.





34.  Which of the following was not an AETC responsibility in 1947?





	a.  Recruiting


	b.  Officer Training


	c.  Intelligence Training





Recruiting did not become an Air Force function until 1954. Prior to the activation of the 3500th Recruiting Wing at Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio, Army recruiters processed applicants for USAF service. HQ USAF Recruiting Service, activated at Wright-Patterson AFB in 1959, replacing the wing. In 1965 HQ USAF Recruiting Service moved to Randolph AFB. 





35.  The first official USAF aerial demonstration team was assigned to AETC and was known as





	a.  The Thunderbirds


	b.  The Acrojets


	c.  Three Men on a Trapeze





The Acrojets were formed in 1948 at Williams AFB, Arizona, one of AETC’s flying training bases. The Thunderbirds have been in existence since 1953 when they were established at Luke AFB. They moved to Nellis in 1956. One of the earlier demonstration teams was known as the Three Men on a Trapeze or the Trapezers. It was formed in 1932 at Maxwell AFB and included such flight legends as Claire Chennault and Haywood “Possum” Hansell. The team performed its last acrobatic demonstration at the January 1936 air races in Miami, Florida.





36.  Which of the following was not a USAF major command in 1947:





	a.  Air Combat Command


	b.  Air Defense Command


	c.  Seventh Air Force





Air Combat Command came into existence during an extensive Air Force reorganization in 1992. Air Defense Command, later Aerospace Defense Command, was a MAJCOM from 1946-1950 and 1951-1980 when it was inactivated. Seventh Air Force held MAJCOM status until it was discontinued in May 1949. 





37.  The Community College of the Air Force granted its 100,000th degree in





	a  1972


	b  1982


	c.	  1992





Now the world’s largest multi-campus community college with approximately 500,000 registered students, the Community College of the Air Force granted its 100,000th degree in 1992. HQ AETC established the college on 1 April 1972 at Randolph AFB. The school moved its head�quarters to Lackland in 1977 and to Maxwell in 1979.





38.  Which of the following AU commanders went on to command AETC?





	a.  Maj Gen Robert Harper


	b.  Gen George Kenney


	c.  Lt Gen Laurence Kuter





Maj General Harper served as the AU commander from May-October 1948. Then, as a lieutenant general, Harper served as the AETC commander from October 1948-June 1954. He had the distinction of being the longest serving AETC commander. General Kenney served as AU commander from 1948-1951, after serving as the Commander of Strategic Air Command. Lieutenant General Kuter was the AU commander from 1953-1955. He left AU to become the Far East Air Force, now PACAF, commander.


